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JOHN ROY — PASTORALIST, SURVEYOR, ROAD ENGINEER AND MAYBE JUST
ANOTHER LAND SPECULATOR

Roys Peak, 1578m, (the one with the snow) taken July 2024. Most of the land mass you see
was all part of Wanaka South Run (Roys Run)

As time passes, we are all fortunate that with the advent of the internet and documentary
sources of the past, history becomes more available (so long as you do not believe everything
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you read on the internet!). The history of John Roy, as it principally relates to the Upper Clutha,
varies in places from what previous commentators have written. My main disagreement is
over the naming of the Wanaka South Run as being “Barton and Roy’s Run” whereas | strongly
believe the true name is Roys Run. | will explain further as the story unfolds.

John Roy left his mark on the Upper Clutha though really only in respect of the naming of
various landmarks. He has not been the easiest person to research as it turned out.

No known photographs of John Roy exist.

Visitors to Wanaka often remark on the placenames around Lake Wanaka named “Roy”, i.e.
Roys Peak (or Mt. Roy) Roys Peninsula, Roys Bay, and little do they know that Ruby Island was
once known as Roys Island. The comments are often accompanied with questions along the
lines of “Who was he? He must have been an important explorer or resident?” It was these
comments from a Deidre Dunne from County Cork in Ireland that set me off on the journey of
discovering John Roy’s history.

John Roy was born in Aberdeen City, Scotland, the first child of John Roy and Margaret Brown
(married 8 Jun 1822). He was baptised on 21 February 1823. John had 8 siblings though it
appears that only 5 had survived childhood.?

The surviving children as at 1841 were:
John bapt. 21 Feb 1823

James b. 21 Feb 1826

William b. 27 Mar 1830

Alex b. 5 Aug 1832

Margaret b. abt 1839

In the 1841 Census, John Roy Snr is recorded as a gardener and John Inr., as a gardener’s
apprentice. Itis likely that he was employed by his father.

There are a number of conflicting reports as to when he came to New Zealand. These range
from 1842 to 1853. However, it is recorded that prior to coming to New Zealand he worked
for Caledonian Railways. If this is correct and that he worked for them as an engineer (not
proven), this has to be after 1845 as Caledonian Railways did not exist until 31 July 1845 when
the company was established and authorised by an Act of Parliament to connect lines from
Edinburgh and Glasgow to Carlisle in England.? That line was completed in 1848. For his
employment, he would have had to move south to perhaps Glasgow or Edinburgh and left his
family back in Aberdeenshire. We do know that he does not appear in the 1851 Scottish Census
and that his father died on 15 September 1849 in the Parish of Banchory-Ternan® which is not
far from Aberdeen City.

1 Births — Scotlandspeople.org.uk
2 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Caledonian_Railway
3 0ld Parish Records Deaths 168/A Aberdeen, Page 207
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He actually arrived in New Zealand in 1851. John and his brother William, are recorded as
being passengers from London, arriving on 1 June 1851 in Auckland on the barque “Stately”
with a total of 82 passengers.* Maybe Auckland might not have impressed them as they left
there on 3 July, still on the “Stately”, bound for New Plymouth and thence on to Wellington,
arriving there on 14 July.®

On 19 July he wrote a letter to the Colonial Secretary applying for employment as a land
surveyor. He was employed by the New Munster Government in Wellington and was described
as “a Scottish born and trained surveyor and engineer who had spent four years on Caledonian

railway construction”.®

In 1852 he was described in newspapers as an engineer but there is a letter requesting
payment for expenses on his appointment as Roads Supervisor in the Survey Office dated 15
Jun 1852.

It should be mentioned at this stage, that no knowledge of what his brother William was doing
at this time, has been found.

In 1853, the Wellington Provincial Government was formed and John Roy was appointed
Provincial Engineer. This was a job with considerable responsibilities over a very large land
area stretching as far north as the Napier area.

But a more important event occurred on 30 June 1853. John married Mary Barton (1833-1922)
at St James Church in the Hutt Valley. Mary was the sole daughter of Richard John Barton
(1790-1866). It has been reported by her descendants that she was illegitimate and also that
her mother was Eliza Brown who died 1840 (two separate sources but neither have proper
sources recorded). It is noted that her daughter’s second name is also Eliza so there is a
possibility that Eliza Brown was Mary’s mother. Mary was born at Backies near Golspie which
is also close to Brora, all located in Sunderland. Richard was employed at Brora and it is noted
in the 1841 Census that there were a number of people with the surname “Brown” in the area.

Richard and his daughter emigrated to New Zealand on the “Oriental”, the first of the NZ
Company’s emigrant ships to leave England and the second to arrive. Richard, born on the Isle
of Wight, had been Superintendent of the Duke of Sutherland’s Estate at Trentham,
Staffordshire, England before moving to the Duke’s holdings in Sutherland, Scotland. He had
then been sponsored by the Duke of Sutherland to take a party of younger men from the
Sutherland Estate to New Zealand and he had been granted 100 acres of land in the Hutt Valley
at what we now know as Trentham. It is stated that Richard was the first European resident of
Trentham, Upper Hutt and during his life he became a Justice of the Peace and Member of the
Provincial Council. On arrival at Wellington, he became the agent of the NZ Company and may
have spent his early time in NZ surveying land areas. He apparently was a surveyor and
engineer back in the United Kingdom and maybe this is how John Roy came to meet Richard’s
daughter.

4 Shipping Intelligence, New Zealander, 4 June 1851, Page 2
5 Arrived, Wellington Independent, 16 July 1851, Page 2
6 Letter etc sighted by Ken Thomlinson of Wanaka at Archives Nz, Wellington.
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John and Mary produced three children:

e John Richard Barton Roy born 26 May 1854 at Trentham
e Margaret Eliza Roy born 25 Mar1856 at Upper Hutt,
e Richard Barton Roy born 14 Mar 1859 at Trentham.

They established a family home in the Hutt Valley.

John’s work took him away from home from time to time as the Wellington Province area was
extensive. It could probably be surmised that his position in the Provincial Government also
gave him opportunities to be “in the know” about Crown Land coming up for transfer to settlers
and others. Over the period of his employment in Wellington, the records show that he
acquired a number of Crown Grants of land. At the time if his death owned the following:

e 3062 acres at Ruataniwha District, Hawkes Bay (Crown Grant)
e 5 sections in the town of Napier

e 1 section at town of Clive (Crown Grant)

e 1 section at township of Richmond, Otago

e 1 section at township of Rawsonville, Wellington
e 6 sectionsin town of Napier*

e 2 sections in Hutt, Wellington*

e 3 sections in Upper Hutt, Wellington*

e 1 sectionin Lower Hutt, Wellington*

e 1 section in Wairarapa*

e 1 section in town of Featherstone*

e 1 section in Papautanui*

*Indicates these properties had been sold prior to death and settlement of sale proceeds
awaited.

But his tale takes another twist and turn when we discover that his younger brother Alex, was
now living in New Zealand. Itis not known when he arrived, but the first mention of him in the
newspapers is in January 1858 and he is living at Ruataniwha, as a farmer and qualifies as a
voter. It would appear from later Probate documents of John Roy, that Alex has been managing
the Run for his brother.

Whatever the position is, it appears that John Roy was/maybe under some financial strain and
there have been reported instances where settlers have been unhappy with his progress on
surveying and building roads. His name is even mentioned in Parliament in April 1858.
Certainly, as becomes evident later on, with the number of properties in his name, they will
have created some ongoing expenses. Where did he get the funds to acquire the properties?
His annual income was £300 pa and whilst it only cost about £20 to apply for a Crown Grant,
you had to find the annual rental, even if it was a relatively notional sum. We do know that
when John’s father died, he was owed £249 by John for the purchase of land, but this must
have occurred before he came to New Zealand.



On 6 Dec 1858, John Roy tendered his resignation to the Superintendent stating that “..... am
compelled to tender my resignation as Engineer of Roads. | regret the necessity of doing so,
seeing | have always received at your hands the greatest amount of courtesy and consideration,
but my own affairs have become so important as to require a share of my attention as to leave
me no alternative”.

But if he is facing financial issues then his continuance to apply for Crown Grants of land is hard
to explain. You might surmise that he has been endeavouring to grow his assets and copy his
father-in-law’s very wealthy position.

The next mention of John is on 5 October 1859 when he travelled by the ship ‘Lord Ashley’ to
Port Chalmers with John Kinross (a partner in the firm of Stuart & Kinross, merchants and
pastoralist investors) and with the firm’s employee, H S Thomson, who was the manager. They
came with three horses. It has been reported that they came to the Upper Clutha via the Lindis
Pass, so they possibly took a coastal ship to Oamaru to start that journey.

The outcome of their journey was that on returning to Dunedin, John Roy applied for a 14 Year
Depasturing Licence (DPL) on what was to become Run 334 (Wanaka Run South) — 100,000
acres. The Licence was to take effect from 26 February 1860. Stuart and Kinross got the
adjacent Run 333.

There is also a notice in the newspapers of a John Roy having applied for Run 353, Lammermuir
Ranges, which was in the Upper Taieri Plains.” It is not known, at this time, if that is the same
John Roy. That Run was sold in June 1862 (without stock) to Messrs Greig and Turnbull, for
£1,250.8

During this application process, maybe Roy sounded out the prospects of employment in
Dunedin and possibly investigated where his family was to live in Dunedin.

You could surmise that in the intervening period, John Roy had employed the services of Stuart
& Kinross to liquidate some of his land assets and reduce debt. The actual story is unknown
however.

Although no records can be found, it is likely that Roy returned to Wellington very soon after
making application for the DPL (Kinross and Thomson stayed in Dunedin until mid-December).
Roy would be aware that he had to stock the Run quickly if he was to get a DPL and for this, he
turned to his father-in-law, Richard Barton. On 1 November 1859, Barton arranged with the
owners of the ship ‘Acasta’ to transport, over time, 6,000 sheep to Oamaru.®

Barton shipped the first 1500 sheep on the ‘Acasta’ on 5 November 1859.1° It is not known
what arrangements were in place to receive the stock and move them to the Run.

7 Depasturing Licences, Otago Witness, 26 November 1859, Page 2

8 Commercial, Otago Witness, 26 June 1862, Page 2

9 Hazel Holmes, “Richard Barton from Sutherland to Trentham”, Published by Author 2023, p 291
10 shipping Intelligence, Wellington Independent, 9 November, p 2
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Further shipments were made on 15 November 1859 (1400 sheep) and on 2 December 1859,
1200 sheep.** On 2 January 1860. Richard Barton travelled to Otago on the ‘Airedale’, no
doubt to discover for himself where the sheep he had supplied were going to and maybe to
check on Dunedin itself as a suitable town for his daughter and grandchildren. It is not known
where Roy was at the time.

Richard Barton

On 13 February 1860, Barton sent another 1000 sheep and 16 cattle down to Oamaru bound
for Roy’s Run.'? The landing of the stock at Oamaru was reported in the book, “History of
North Otago from 1853”13 and in Wellington newspapers.

Whilst he was in Wellington, Roy searched for a manager for the Run and he selected Henry
Norman. It appears that he also employed two or three men as shepherds. The Norman Family
was to become the first settler family known to live in the Wanaka district.

11 Shipping Intelligence, NZ Spectator and Cook Strait Guardian, 26 November 1859, p2; Shipping Intelligence,
Wellington Independent, 2 December 1859, p 3

12 shipping intelligence, Wellington Independent, 14 February 1860, p 3

13 W H S Roberts, “History of North Otago from 1853”, publishing details unknown, p 38
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On 26 February, Roy received his DPL for his 100,000 acre Run. It was for a 14 year period
starting the same day and the rental was £19-10-00 pa.

Roy was offered the position of Provincial Engineer for Otago commencing May 1860 which he
took up. That definitely meant he was moving from Wellington and it is noted that in June
1860, Stuart Kinross & Co were advertising his dwelling and grounds for rent. This property
was Richard Barton’s original home.'*

TO BE LET,
With Immediate Possession.

HAT very desirable Villa at the Hutt, the

Residence of Joux Rov, Esquire, with all
't'the Grounds and pertinents thereto.

The Dwelling-house containg 6 rooms and
kitchen, and has o good Verandah in front.

In the rear of the house are a 2-stalled Stable,
with hay-loft, gig-house, and other offices.

The Grounds extend to six mcres, or thereby, and
besides Paddocks, there is & well-stocked Garden
and Orchard.

Apply to the Proprietor on the Premises, or to

STUART, KINROSS, % CO.

Wellington, June 4, 1860.

What was also Interesting, is that his first job was to organise the road over the Lindis Pass
which just happened to be the main access way to his Run. Is it by coincidence that he was
previously involved in creating the road to Ruataniwha where his other Run was located?

On 8 May 1860 Henry Norman, his wife Mary Ann, Richard, their first born son, and the
shepherds Roy had employed, left Wellington on the “Snaresbrook”. They landed on the
foreshore at Oamaru from surf boats (no wharf then!), together with 1700 merino sheep, 30
cattle, 2 horses, a bullock dray, poultry, cats, a cow and a calf. From there they travelled up
the Waitaki Valley and over the Lindis Pass to arrive in mid-June at Roys Bay on Lake Wanaka,
where they set up their first home in wattle and daub huts.

Meantime, Roy arranged to purchase a home at Halfway Bush, Dunedin that was
commensurate with his prestigious position in the Provincial Government.

It should be noted at this point, Roy was never a resident on Run 334. He probably initially
visited the Run on occasions for a few days, but his job as Provincial Engineer would take up a
fair bit of his time. He did however find time to name four geographical locations after himself
— Roys Peak (Mt Roy), Roys Bay, Roys Peninsula and Roys Island. The latter is now known as
Ruby Island and it has had a number of names prior to being known as Ruby Island. Research
has also indicated that there was a road cutting (location now unknown) named Roys Cutting

14 Hazel Holmes, “Richard Barton from Sutherland to Trentham”, Published by Author 2023, p 291
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on a road from West Taieri to Central Otago and there was a Roys Gully'® in Dunedin not too
far from his residence. Maybe Roy had something to do with them as well.

Roy’s name was still occasionally appearing on Crown Grant approval lists. This was unusual in
hindsight, as discovered after his death, when all his debts were disclosed.

On 20 June 1861, John Roy wrote to the Superintendent of Otago “I have the honor (sic) to
tender my resignation of my office under the Provincial Government, and as my private affairs
require immediate attention | shall feel obliged by you making the necessary arrangements for
relieving me of my duties as early as possible. | have the honor (sic) to be, Your obedient servant,
(signed) John Roy.”

The next day he sailed for Wellington and thence to Napier with Kinross, returning to Dunedin
in August. There were a number of trips to and from Wellington over the following months
until on 12 August 1862 when Roy signed a Conditional Bill of Sale'® over the Run, the stock
(estimated as 5000 sheep and 16 cattle) and all the plant, in favour of Richard Barton as a
security for a loan of £8,800, which in 2024 spending terms is about £1,240,397
(NZDS$2,646,100). This is a sizeable sum. Barton may have become concerned for his daughter
and provided funding to repay some of Roy’s debts or maybe Roy has not paid for the stock
sent to him by Barton over the last two years. Incidentally, the wording of the Bill is contained
in one sentence of about 1,500 words!

It appears that this transaction caused some later commentators to believe that Roy sold the
Run to Barton which is an incorrect interpretation of the situation.

In addition to the Conditional Bill of Sale, Barton was been granted land mortgage securities
over Roy’s Dunedin home and some other property.

The transaction also led to the end of Henry Norman’s employment with Roy. Richard Norman,
Henry’s son, wrote that in October 1862, his father “bought the ferry boat and also David
Robertson’s .....wood and calico shelter at Albert Ferry.”!” This was located at the junction of
the Hawea River and the Clutha River.’® At the time, it was the main crossing point for miners
headed for the Cardrona and Arrow goldfields.

Somehow, Roy survived and it is noted that he made a number of voyages to Wellington and
Napier during 1863 but matters were coming to a head. He also made a number of trips up to
the Run as is evidenced by unpaid accounts claimed by his creditors against his estate. Some
of these debts went as far back as 1861%°.

15 Mentioned in a number of newspaper articles relating to Scouts over the period 1910 to 1910.

16 A Conditional Bill of Sale does not mean that the property listed has been sold to the grantee. That would
only occur if any of the terms and conditions of the Bill, including repayment of the loan were not met. Itisa
security. A simple Bill of Sale is documentary evidence of the actual sale of property

17 Otago Witness, 1 January 1929, Page 23. The whole article is not entirely factual but remember it was
written 60 years after the event when Richard was about 3 years of age. Certainly Henry and his family moved
out sometime between September and December.

18 Refer to Newsletter No. 4

19 Example is a debt listing for accommodation totalling £8-6-0 to Frederick Schluter of Boundary Creek, Oamaru
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Whilst he may have been able to make the first repayment of £3369-13-4 that was due to his
father-in-law on 1 December 1862, the next payment of £1800-00-0, due exactly a year later,
was another matter. It was resolved by Roy selling the Run plus stock and equipment to Robert
Wilkin for £20,169-7-0 with settlement to take place on 3 December 1863. Wilkin had to pay
£5,042-7-0 in cash and the balance was to be paid with four Bills, payable annually from 1865
to 1868. The cash, plus the payment Roy would have had to have made in December 1862, is
very close to the sum borrowed from Richard Barton. The securities held by Barton were
released and he declared settlement of the full amount had been made (it had to be, otherwise
title could not have been given to Wilkin). Wilkin’s Conditional Bills of Sale were to be
deposited with the Bank of Otago as security for the debt John Roy owed to it, but it appears
that the contract may not have been documented properly nor registered at the Court at the
time. No copy has been located.

John Roy and his brother Alex (manager of the Ruataniwha Run) left Dunedin on 25 December
1863 for Napier on the ‘Lord Ashley’ and John returned to Dunedin on 28 January 1864 but
that was Roy’s last voyage.

On 21 February 1864, John Roy died of Cirrhosis of the Liver. Itis clear he was an alcoholic and
this is also born out by his Doctor’s accounts and family comments afterwards. It goes some
way towards explaining his actions over the last few years of his life.

Three days after Roy’s death, Robert Wilkin executed an Indenture relating to his purchase of
the Run (a document setting out all the conditions including all obligations relating to



settlement of the full amount). This document was immediately registered with the Court.
Robert Wilkin did meet all the obligations recorded in the Indenture.

What became of Mary?

S e . e . é'-—_-~.' \.;".’.&‘

Mary had been left with two sons to raise (their daughter Margaret Elizabeth had previously
died in 1862 in Dunedin) and as a trustee of John’s Estate. It was a complicated and involved
financial “mess”. She was ably assisted by the other Trustee and her own solicitor/barrister
who was a leading barrister in Dunedin (though not at times without controversy) who also
had the surname, Barton (no relation to Richard Barton).

The Estate took some time to settle (exactly when is unknown as the existing records do not
extend beyond 1868 and comprise, as it is, about 90 pages of information).

Her father, Richard John Barton died on 20 August 1866.

On 8 November 1866, Mary married William Strachan, a widower, who had emigrated from
Aberdeenshire.
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Mary died in Hataitai, Wellington, in 1922.

Barton & Roy’s Run - A Myth?

It has been suggested that Roy did not own the Roys Run operation alone, but that Richard
Barton was a part-owner. The main sources of this idea, originate from George Hassing and
Richard Norman, son of Henry Norman. Both men are respected sources of the history of the
Upper Clutha. George was working at the time in the area, including operating punts at Albert
Town and Sandypoint, but the facts speak for themselves. Richard was aged between two and
4 years whilst Roys Run existed, so his information has come from sources later on in life,
probably from his parents.

Firstly, all of the legal documents that exist, clearly state that John Roy alone held the DPL to
the land. Richard Barton was a very astute businessman of undoubted integrity, who never
entered into partnerships with others.?? In addition, he had loaned £8,800 pounds to Roy and
was granted security over the DPL, stock etc. Roy alone executed that security.

It is acknowledged that the source of most of the livestock (sheep and cattle) was Barton and
that this was known to others. It is thought that likely, as time passed, the “story” changed to
“Bartons and Roy’s livestock” which then created the idea that Barton must also part-own the
DPL.

As previously mentioned, the 1862 conditional Bill of Sale from Roy to Barton also caused some
commentators to write that Roy had sold to Barton. As mentioned earlier, that is incorrect.
When Roy eventually sold out to Robert Wilkin, he was the sole executor of all the legal
documents and Barton’s only action was to release his security over the DPL, livestock and
equipment in return for repayment of the monies still owing to him by Roy.

It is noted that Hassing and Norman’s correspondence on the subject, as published in
newspapers between 1900 and 1940 (especially around 1925), both men then claim Barton
and Roy being in an ownership partnership but this is late in their respective lives and their
other “facts” on some subjects, are inconsistent with earlier statements they have made.

Roy was still incurring debts in his own name that clearly relate to the management of the Run
during 1863. Why would he do that if he had sold the Run in 1862 to Barton??! See the
example that follows on the next page:

20 Hazel Holmes, author of “Richard Barton from Sutherland to Trentham” published 2023
21 Refer to the records of John Roy’s Deceased Estate held with all his Probate Records.
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Was there confusion with another person with the surname of Barton, as previously
mentioned, who was involved in the Estate management after Roy’s death? That is George
Edward Barton. He arranged and witnessed Roy’s Last Will and Testament in 1862. Barton
advised Mrs Roy as trustee of the Estate.

Some Other Interesting Facts

Roy’s younger brother Alex, had emigrated from Aberdeen and was employed by Roy on his
Hawkes Bay Station. Roy owed Alex, what was a large sum for a farm manager, for
unpaid/short-paid wages etc at Roy’s death. Alex paid for a headstone on Roy’s grave in
Dunedin (the grave also contained Roy’s previously deceased daughter, Margaret).

At the time of Roy’s death (1864), Roy still owed his deceased father (he died in 1849!) £211-
13-2, the residual balance of a loan made to Roy to enable him to “purchase some land”.

Roys Peak, Roys Peninsula, Roys Bay and ???

As previously indicated, it appears that Roy liked naming places after himself. At one point,
Ruby Island in Lake Wanaka was also named Roys Island (and has had a number of other
names). What is little known, is that Roy also named a hill in Hawkes Bay after himself. It is
not as impressive as Roys Peak but the name survives to this day.
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The Roy's Hill Reserve in 2012, with earlier plantings showing signs of growth. Photo: Hastings District
Council

It is currently known as the Roy’s Hill Reserve and is managed by the Hawkes Bay Council.

John Roy is a bit of an enigma, but he surely left his mark on New Zealand during his brief
tenure on this land.

IMPORTANT REMINDER TO ALL FINANCIAL MEMBERS

A reminder that the Committee has called a Special General Meeting for the Upper Clutha
Historical Records Society Inc. to be held at 7pm on Wednesday 4" September 2024 at the
Wanaka Community Hub, 34 McDougall St, Wanaka. All financial members are invited to
attend.

The Meeting Agenda is to consider and pass the following resolutions:
1. That the Society change its name to Upper Clutha History Society Inc.

2. That the Society reregister under the Incorporated Societies Act 2022, and adopt the new
Constitution attached to this email.

A copy of the updated proposed new Constitution was attached to the Secretary’s email sent
out on 20 August 2024.
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100 YEARS AGO
Dominion Newspaper 29 Sept 1924:

Tha flaxmilling industre which flour-
ished for some wvears in North-western
Otaro, but lately has not heen exten-
sively pursued, is about {o be re-
commenced on an extensive scale (an-
nouzces the “Times’). An QOamaru
com™nv has made arrangements to
recommission the flax mill at Maka-
rora, and operations are to be com-
menced at an early date, A wide
scope_ presents itself for the industry
in this locality, as tho flax growing in
the valley at the head of Lalke Wanalka
is considered as being the best in
the South Island. The same company
also intends enlarging the sagvmilling
operations at present carried on in
that district.

Maybe this later article from the Otago Daily Times on 9 August 1927 seals the fate of the
Mill?

For a numher of years a flaxmiil has
been operating successfully in the district,
but was recently closed down on account
of having oxhausted the grown flax until
a year hence, when sufficient flax will be
arain- ready for eutting. A scheme to
enable the mill to operate continually is
being tried out by Mr Wm, Taylor in the
form of crowiing and cultnm:mg ax
throughout the valley. This 1s being suc-
cessfully carried out in several progressive
parts of the North Island, and should. be
cqually sueccessful here, It. will also bLe
the means of absorbing more unemploved
[t 1s further hoped that the local sawmill
will again commence operations, It is
understood there 1s no lack of orders here.
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MESSAGE FROM PRESIDENT ED

Téna koutou, dear members and readers,

The strengths of the Society have been the dedicated and generous active volunteers and the
vast numbers of records: photos, maps, documents, books, and ephemera. Efforts in
organising and building systems to record, track, and preserve these records are impressive.
The physical archive is in good shape, and the digitisation process continues apace.

Our Society has had three core purposes. To paraphrase: the collection and preservation of
records; serving as a reference point and advisors on historical matters; and research and
education. The third purpose is one the Society is aiming to enhance. In the past, we have
published several important and relevant publications and provided widespread advice.
Typically, an archive’s link to education has meant a museum of some kind, but that is an
unlikely prospect in the near term.

We have also had many discussions about the name. For most of the last 160 years, Wanaka
township (or Pembroke) was not very substantial, so Upper Clutha had far more relevance in
describing the string of settlements and places in the area. Now that Wanaka has become the
dominant town, it is the name most associated with the area by many. In an internet search
for ‘Wanaka History’, UCHRS’s website comes quite far down the results list. Our website is
also dated and not mobile-friendly. Therefore, we are in the process of a refresh.

The first proposed change is to rename the Society to Upper Clutha History Society. This is to
signal a pivot to more storytelling and education. The second change is the launch of a brand
name, Wanaka History. We intend to use this brand to migrate our website and, in lieu of a
museum, to mark many places of interest around the area, linked to the website with various
methods of digital storytelling. We aim to capture more web traffic and increase relevance to
tourists, recent arrivals, and the youth audience.

Changes to the Charities Act have also required a new constitution. Therefore, an SGM is
scheduled for early September, where we wish to adopt the name change and the new
constitution.

A special mention should go to the efforts of past and present volunteers who have given tens
of thousands of hours of time and expertise to the Society. Also, thanks to the committee
whose support and governance are enabling the Society to advance its goals.

Ed Waddington

President, UCHRS
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KINGS BIRTHDAY HONOURS 2024

Two of our members appeared in the Honours List:
CNZM —awarded to Mary Lee of Cardrona
ONZM — awarded to Ralph Fegan

Both Mary and Ralph have contributed much to the Upper Clutha communities over the years,
and their recognition with these Honours is justly due.

AN OLD PHOTO

A photo, just discovered, of the Peace Celebrations down on Pembroke Park on 12 November
1918. It was a dark exposure and it looked like many of the celebrants were drinking from
bottles — that is until we enhanced the photo! Who knew Pembroke had its own Pembroke
Kazoo Band?
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RECORDING EDITORS WANTED

The UCHRS Oral History Programme is now in its second year and we have a number of
interview recordings that need editing to remove things like sneezes and coughs etc.

By way of background, we have a number of interviewers who have been recording the lives
and life experiences of people who have lived within the Upper Clutha over the years. They
make for interesting recordings.

We are looking for people who already have skills to edit the recordings using

“Audacity”. Whilst we have some volunteers that are very interested in learning these skills,
if we have people in our community who can already edit audio recordings, we would really
appreciate them either joining the team or teaching others the necessary skills.

If you can assist, or wish to discuss being possibly able to assist us, please email Liz at
oralhistory@uppercluthahistory.org and include your contact details.

WHAT IS IT?

Does anyone recognize what this piece of machinery might be? It is located on what was
farmland and one thought was that it was used for lifting hay up onto a haystack. Parts of it
are scattered around the immediate area. These include cast-iron wheels If you have any
suggestions, please email me (Ken) at Newsletters@uppercluthahistory.org.

JO’S NOTES

Wednesday mornings from 9-11, in the History Room and on the table outside, is where we
help answer queries as well as work on on-going projects. On the 14" we had 10 people during
this time. David is still scanning box files; Erena & Jennine identifying, documenting, scanning
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photographs; Sue updating a photograph list; Ed and Catherine setting the new Wanaka History
Project targets; Ken A researching; Sara getting assistance; Jo searching the Wanaka Hotel
register for an enquirer and Rob researching for the Lions Club anniversary. Offsite; Kaye in
Brisbane is finalising the full documentation of John McLean of Morven Hills. Margaret & Ken
T replying to a Bremner Bay query. Is life dull? —no, interesting and challenging — yes, love it.

THANKS

Thanks are extended to the various publications that were the sources of the information in
the newsletter. Individuals are too numerous to list but references have been sourced from

Paperspast.co.nz, a number of out-of-print publications and the records of the UCHRS.

ENQUIRIES, RESEARCH AND PHOTOS

The Records Room at the Wanaka Library is open on Wednesday mornings from about 9am to
11am (except during December and January). It is manned by a very small team of volunteers.
To make an appointment for Research enquiries, please contact the Wanaka Library staff who

will pass on the request, or preferably email admin@uppercluthahistory.org with contact

details and the subject of your enquiry.

OUR PUBLICATIONS

The Society has published a small number of books and booklets over the years.

Skirt Tales — 100 Historical Stories of Women from the Upper Clutha Area, Central Otago - $25.
This is the 4™ time this book has been reprinted. It is available from the Society, and the
Wanaka Library. Postage is $7-50 if required.

The Sequel — - $25. A sequel to Skirt Tales. A small number of copies of this book are available
from The Society and the Wanaka Library. Postage $7-50.

125, Look Alive — 125 Years of Schooling in the Wanaka District - $15.00. Available from the
Society or the Wanaka Library. Postage is $7-00 if required.

The Upper Clutha — 150 Years - $5. A short history of the Upper Clutha district. Available from
the Society or the Wanaka Library. Postage is $6-50 if required.

Courageous and Free — $30 -Stories of Upper Clutha WW1 Soldiers and Nurse who died due to
war service. This is the second edition. Postage $7-50.

NZ Post “Bubble Bags” are used to protect the books.
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PHOTOS

Copies of the photographs held in our records can be provided as a digital file. WE do not
provided printed copies. A small number of photos are subject to copyright or ownership of
external parties and we cannot provide files for these.

Costs are:

For individuals:

Digital file: $30-00

For Non-profit Community organizations:

There is generally no fee for digital copies but a donation would be welcome.
For Commercial Organizations:

Please enquire. The Society only provides a digital file and there are limitations on use of
same.

Please note that ownership of the image lies with the Society and further copying requires
our written approval and possibly an additional negotiated fee.

WHO ARE WE?

President : Ed Waddington
Treasurer: Bruce Foulds
Secretary: Dawn Bosely

Committee Members: Jo Wilton, Maia Bennett, Helen Howarth, Ken Allan (Editor).

The Society was established in 1985, Incorporated in 2010, and became a Charity in 2014, to
collect and preserve records and images of the history of the Upper Clutha region and make
them available to members of the public. The records are held in a special room in the Wanaka
Library and a small team of volunteers provides research assistance (appointments are
necessary) to members of the public who may be looking for their family history or for persons
searching for aspects of NZ history. Copying costs apply.

The Society is a Registered Charity. Funding is reliant on the assistance of a variety of
community funders and individual gifts. We are especially indebted to the Central Lakes Trust,
Otago Community Trust and Queenstown Lakes District Council. Donations are very welcome,
as are new members.
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Donations may be made to our bank account 03-1739-0012311-00 with the reference —
Donation. As we are a Registered Charity, donations over S5 are tax deductible — please ask
for a receipt. Please note that the IRD require donor’s full name and full address.

Membership Subscriptions for year ending 31 March are $15-00 per person.

Website: http://www.uppercluthahistory.org/

Email: admin@uppercluthahistory.org

20


http://www.uppercluthahistory.org/
mailto:admin@uppercluthahistory.org

